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FDA has identified potential noncompliance related to the above-identified clinical trial, titled 
“A Phase 1-2, Dose-Escalating, 4-Part Study to Evaluate the Safety and Pharmacokinetics of 
Single and Multiple Doses of AT-007 in Healthy Adult Subjects and Adult Subjects With Classic 
Galactosemia.” This trial was a first-in-human, randomized, placebo-controlled, single 
ascending dose and multiple ascending dose study in subjects with classic galactosemia. It 
appears that results information for the referenced applicable clinical trial has not been 
submitted to the ClinicalTrials.gov data bank.5  Your company should review its records of this 
clinical trial and determine whether your company submitted all required results information.  
If your company determine that results information is required and due for this clinical trial, 
please submit the results information promptly.

Failure to submit clinical trial information6 required under section 402(j) of the PHS Act (42 
U.S.C. 282(j)), including information required under the regulations found in 42 CFR part 11, 
is a prohibited act under section 301(jj)(2) of the Federal Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act (FD&C 
Act) (21 U.S.C. 331(jj)(2)).  Beginning 30 calendar days after you receive this letter, FDA 
intends to further review and assess the above-identified clinical trial.  If FDA determines that 
your company has failed to submit any clinical trial information required under section 402(j) 
of the PHS Act (42 U.S.C. 282(j)), including its implementing regulations in 42 CFR part 11, 
your company may receive from FDA a Notice of Noncompliance,7 and FDA may thereafter 
initiate an administrative action seeking a civil money penalty.8  In addition to civil money 
penalties, violations of section 301(jj) of the FD&C Act (21 U.S.C. 331(jj)) could result in other 
regulatory action, such as injunction and/or criminal prosecution, without further notice. 

5 We acknowledge that on March 7, 2023, your company initiated the submission of results information for NCT04117711 
to the National Library of Medicine’s Protocol Registration and Results System; however, your company did not enter 
complete results information or did not complete the process for submitting results information, and the preliminary steps 
taken by your company do not constitute submission of results information under 42 CFR 11.44(a).
6 See sections 402(j)(1)(A)(iv) of the PHS Act (42 U.S.C. 282(j)(1)(A)(iv)) and 42 CFR 11.10 for the definition of “clinical 
trial information.”
7 See section 402(j)(5)(C)(ii) of the PHS Act (42 U.S.C. 282(j)(5)(C)(ii)).
8 Pursuant to section 303(f)(3)(A) of the FD&C Act (21 U.S.C. 333(f)(3)(A)), “[a]ny person who violates section 301(jj) [of the 
FD&C Act (21 U.S.C. 331(jj))] shall be subject to a civil monetary penalty of not more than $10,000 for all violations 
adjudicated in a single proceeding.”  Moreover, section 303(f)(3)(B) of the FD&C Act (21 U.S.C. 333(f)(3)(B)) provides that 
“[i]f a violation of section 301(jj) [of the FD&C Act (21 U.S.C. 331(jj))] is not corrected within the 30-day period following 
notification under section 402(j)(5)(C)(ii) [of the PHS Act (42 U.S.C. 282(j)(5)(C)(ii))], the person shall, in addition to any 
penalty under subparagraph (A), be subject to a civil monetary penalty of not more than $10,000 for each day of the violation 
after such period until the violation is corrected.”  These civil money penalty amounts reflect the amounts found in the statute.  
These amounts are updated annually to reflect inflation, as required by the Federal Civil Penalties Inflation Adjustment Act of 
1990 (Pub. L. No. 101-410, 104 Stat. 890 (1990) (codified as amended at 28 U.S.C. 2461, note 2(a)), as amended by the 
Federal Civil Penalties Inflation Adjustment Act Improvements Act of 2015 (Sec. 701 of the Bipartisan Budget Act of 2015, 
Pub. L. No. 114-74, November 2, 2015).  For the most up-to-date amounts, please see 45 CFR 102.3.
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